
Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 1 of 28 
 
 
  

Meeting Minutes 
Restoration Advisory Board 

Former Schenectady Army Depot – Voorheesville Area 
October 17, 2002 

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
Albany, New York 

 
Restoration Advisory Board Members and Project Staff Attendees 
 
Ted Ausfeld 
Ray Gemme 
Charles Rielly 
Dan Geraghty, New York State Department of Health 
Gregory J. Goepfert, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Corps Co-Chair 
Jeffrey McCullough, New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
George Moreau, Parsons Engineering Science, Inc. 
Dennis Wesolowski, Defense Logistics Agency 
Deb Volkmer, Weston 
 
Other Attendees 
 
Lorraine Benton, New York State Department of Health 
John Brzezenski, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Baltimore District 
Ronald Groves, Albany County Health Department 
Carol Kaelin, Altamont Enterprise 
Betsy Lewis-Michl, New York State Department of Health 
Russell Marsh, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Baltimore District 
Jim Quinn, New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
Michael Rivara, New York State Department of Health 
 
 
Meeting Called to Order 
 

G. Goepfert called the meeting to order at 9:10 a.m. and welcomed the participating 
Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) members, project staff, and other attendees to the meeting.  
He said that the RAB contributed thoughtful comments to the draft Remedial Investigation 
Report.  He added that he appreciates the public’s participation to assist the Corps in moving 
forward with the site cleanup activities.  He asked that the RAB to continue with their 
participation.  (Attachment 1 provides a list of questions/potential actions items posed by RAB 
members requiring post-meeting follow-up responses.) 
 

C. Rielly asked whether there will be a summary report on the cleanup conducted at the 
Guilderland Central School District. 
 

G. Goepfert responded, yes, a report will be prepared and distributed. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 2 of 28 
 
 
  

Presentation 
 

G. Goepfert gave a PowerPoint presentation about the remedial investigation and cleanup 
at the Guilderland Central School District and the investigation and remediation planned in fiscal 
year 2003 at the Former Schenectady Army Depot – Voorheesville Area (FSADVA).  
(Attachment 2 provides G. Goepfert’s PowerPoint presentation.) 
 

T. Ausfeld asked how accurate was the ground penetrating radar (GPR). 
 

G. Goepfert responded that the greatest useful depth of exploration of the GPR equipment 
used is 18 feet. 
 

T. Ausfeld asked whether the GPR will be utilized in the warehouse area. 
 

G. Goepfert responded that the GPR will be used with the burn pit investigation; 
primarily west and north of the warehouse. 
 

C. Rielly asked how difficult is the GPR system to use on larger areas. 
 

G. Goepfert responded that one-day usage of the GPR is $5,000 to $6,000 per day and 
that could get expensive.  He said some GPR surveys have been conducted at the burn pit and 
landfills.  He added that the Corps would use the GPR system on an as needed basis. 
 

T. Ausfeld said there is a whole field that may be developed at a later date.  He added that 
the school should have used the GPR before it built the school bus garage. 
 

G. Goepfert said that the school did some limited investigation with the GPR but did not 
find any buried objects. 
 

D. Geraghty said he was pleased with the Corps’ quick response to the school bus garage 
situation. 
 

G. Goepfert said he was pleased that the Corps had the capability to address the school 
bus garage situation and to identify the buried items. 
 

T. Ausfeld said we knew there was a problem in the warehouse and burn pit areas.  Rain 
moved contamination from the soil to other areas.  The Corps could have seeded the area to 
prevent migration of contamination to the drainage areas.  He added that he was concerned that 
measures were not taken to prohibit migration of contamination. 
 

D. Geraghty said the contamination is 10 feet below the surface. 
 

T. Ausfeld responded that the ash is not 10 feet below the surface.    He said more 
investigation is needed.  More areas are contaminated than the nine areas currently identified. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 3 of 28 
 
 
  

D. Geraghty replied that T. Ausfeld provided a good point.  He added that his experiences 
with military bases have found new areas of contamination after original locations were 
identified. 

 
G. Goepfert stated that the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers is the lead agency in 

addressing Formerly Used Defense Sites (FUDS), and the Army would take responsibility for 
any items linked to the Department of Defense use of the site. A policy statement to that effect 
will be included in the Remedial Investigation Report. 
 
Discussion of Draft Remedial Investigation Report 
 

The remainder of the meeting was dedicated to the review of RAB comments and Corps 
responses to the comments on the draft Remedial Investigation Report.  (Attachment 3 provides 
the RAB comments and issues presented to the Corps.  Attachment 4 provides the Corps 
response to the RAB comments and issues.)   Copies of the comments and issues presented by 
the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) and New York 
State Department of Health (NYSDOH) and copies of the Corps responses to the state agencies 
were made available to the meeting participants; however, the state’s comments/issues were not 
reviewed at the meeting.  (Attachment 5 provides the NYSDEC and NYSDOH comments and 
issues presented to the Corps.  Attachment 6 provides the Corps response to the state.) 
 

Please note that the meeting participants discussed many of the RAB comments/issues 
and the Corps corresponding response; however, not all of the comments/issues/responses were 
discussed.  The following provides an account of the comments/issues/responses that were 
discussed during the meeting. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 3.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated 
November 16, 2001 

AOC (3), AOC (1), and AOC (5) should all have focused feasibility 
reports finalized and put on record for funding.  Additionally, AOC 
(2) should be a priority.  (Private Home Owner) 

Attachment 4, Page 1.  
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

2. A Focused Feasibility Study has been prepared for Area of 
Concern (AOC) (3) and is included in the reference sections of the 
Guilderland and Voorheesville libraries.  A Focused Feasibility 
Study is being prepared for AOC (2); the draft document will be 
available in November 2002. As funding allows, Focused Feasibility 
Studies will be prepared for AOC (1). The Defense National 
Stockpile Center operates the Voorheesville Depot (AOC (5)), and is 
implementing measures to reduce off-site migration of sediments and 
soils at this location; the design of these measures is in lieu of a 
Focused Feasibility Study. 

 
D. Wesolowski said the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA) is prepared to move forward 

with the proposed activities:  expand a pond, add a pond, trench, and add public water to the 
facility. 
 

 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 4 of 28 
 
 
  

(The following three comments refer to the “Road Show”) 
 

T. Ausfeld asked if there was construction occurring on the north side of the DLA 
property and on the other side of the fence. 

 
D. Wesolowski responded that was not DLA property but Northeast Industrial Park 

owners’ land.  He was concerned of the possibility that someone could crash the DLA fence; 
however, nothing on the DLA property was affected. 

 
C. Rielly said he was uneasy that the construction was so close to the areas of concerns.  

He added that there was no communication about the construction and he interpreted the lack of 
communication by the Galesi Group, the property owners, to demonstrate their lack of concern. 
 
Attachment 3, page 3.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated 
November 16, 2001  

3. The New York State Departments involved with the SAD 
Remedial Investigation should make a written report, available to the 
public, involving this watershed as stated in past minutes and the 
Black Creek should be Class A. 

Attachment 4, page 1. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue.  

3. NYSDEC will address at the 17 October 2002 meeting. 

 
J. McCullough said he contacted a local official who said he would attend the next RAB 

meeting.  He added that the area is monitored and State Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(SPDES) permits are in effect. 
 

C. Rielly asked if the state had a record of what is allowed for the SPDES permits 
discharging into Black Creek. 
 

J. McCullough responded that there are three SPDES permits for the Black Creek: 
 
• A company that is in Chapter 11 bankruptcy and is not discharging 
• Town of Guilderland 
• Guilderland Water Plant 

 
T. Ausfeld asked if the discharge [allowed by SPDES permits] was plastics 

contamination. 
 

J. McCullough responded that the company was allowed to discharge in low levels. 
 

T. Ausfeld asked what happened to the stored plastics? 
 

J. McCullough responded that the plans are to recycle the plastics. 
 

T. Ausfeld asked if plastics are currently stored on site. 
 

J. McCullough responded that he had not been in the facility. 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 5 of 28 
 
 
  

 
T. Ausfeld asked if the bankruptcy actions will end the SPDES permit. 

 
J. McCullough responded that the permit will have to end. 

 
Attachment 3, Page 3.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated 
November 16, 2001 

4. Each year during the springtime run off period, the Black Creek 
should be tested for all contaminants noted in ACE Reports.  Also, 
the Guilderland High School well water should be tested. 

Attachment 4, Pages 1 
and 2.  Corps written 
response to 
comment/issue 

4. Black Creek testing will be addressed in a follow-on Remedial 
Investigation/Data Gap Workplan; yearly testing may be out of scope 
of this investigation, however, further testing will be dependent on a 
review of future testing results.  The New York State Department of 
Health tested the water from the well located in the Transportation 
Building of the Guilderland Center Transportation Facility, on April 
24, 2002 and on June 13, 2002. In NYDOH’s letter to the Assistant 
Superintendent for Business for the Guilderland School District, Mr. 
Daniel Geraghty reported the results as follows: sodium was detected 
at a concentration of 32 mg/l; he notes that people on a severely 
restricted sodium diet should not drink water with more than 20 mg/l 
sodium.  In the April 24, 2002 sample, the only semi-volatile 
compound found above standards  a plasticizer compound widely 
used in a variety of common products including synthetic rubber, 
food packaging and cosmetics was found at 420 mcg/l—slightly 
above the Federal standard of 400 mcg/l. The name of the compound 
is Di-(2-ethylhexyl) Adipate. Mr. Geraghty added that because of 
this result, the well was resampled on June 13, 2002, and Di-(2-
ethylhexyl) Adipate was not detected in this second sample. Mr. 
Geraghty noted in the letter that he understands that the water is not 
used for drinking, but for irrigation of the Guilderland High School 
athletic fields, for washing of school buses, and is the water supply 
for the washrooms in the employee’s lounge. 

 
D. Geraghty said the Black Creek has been sampled three times and no contaminants 

(metals, pesticides, and PCBs) were detected. 
 

T. Ausfeld said there is another landfill, started by the Army, that will be contributing 
contamination.  As a kid in the 1960s he observed vehicles coming in the area and dumping.  He 
added that other people may have witnessed the Army dumping. 
 

G. Goepfert suggested that T. Ausfeld review the oral history and compare the persons 
interviewed with the individuals he believes observed the dumping.  G. Goepfert added that the 
Corps will talk to the persons T. Ausfeld identifies.  
 

C. Rielly asked if the new wells for irrigation across the creek were tested. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 6 of 28 
 
 
  

D. Geraghty responded, no, the test wells are downgradient from the site. 
 

C. Rielly asked if the state had any input into the location of the new irrigation wells. 
 

D. Geraghty responded, no. 
 
C. Rielly said the draw of the wells could change the plume and asked if the state should 

be aware of that. 
 

D. Geraghty responded that there was no need to contact the state.  There could be a lot 
of drawing water. 
 

T. Ausfeld said there is a lot of water use in the area and people need to know if the 
groundwater is polluted.  He added everything in the area needs to be tested. 
 

G. Moreau said the monitoring well network is in place to examine the changes in the 
plume. 
 

T. Ausfeld said the monitoring well network is just in one area.  There are other areas 
with possibility of contaminated groundwater and wells.  He added that private wells could be 
installed. 
 

J. McCullough said the water is used for irrigation and not drinking. 
 

T. Ausfeld said that is unknown and that it is not being done correctly.  He added that 
wells are pulling the water around. 
 

G. Goepfert asked if there are wells near the municipal landfill. 
 

T. Ausfeld responded, yes, however the water is not being used at this time. 
 

C. Rielly said, according to the Assistant School Superintendent, the school can use water 
from Black Creek to water its fields. 
 

J. McCullough said he was not aware of that but he was not concerned with pumping 
water for irrigation uses. 
 

C. Rielly said it was not right and something needs to be done. 
 

J. Quinn said the data does not show a problem. 
 

Upon arrival of three additional NYSDOH representatives the discussion focused on 
health related comments and issues. 
 
 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 7 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 3, page 10. 
Restoration Advisory 
Board letter of July 23, 
2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter J.R. 
Buttner, Ph.D., and Local 
Community Members of 
the RAB 

8. A study of the health of long-term residents living in the 
immediate area surrounding the FSADVA as well as present and 
former workers at the Northeastern Industrial Park (NEIP) should be 
done.  This effort will assist in determining if any cumulative 
adverse health effects have been caused or are expected to be caused 
by exposure to the various pollutants that are or were present at the 
FSADVA/NEIP. 

Attachment 4, page 6. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue. 

VI. (8) NYSDOH representative will address at the 17 October 2002 
meeting. 

 
T. Ausfeld said at a meeting there were nine women with breast cancer and one man with 

health problems. 
 

B. Lewis-Michl said it is difficult to study small groups of human beings.  She added that 
often time the NYSDOH is not in a good position to respond to the questions. 
 

C. Rielly asked if there was a NYSDOH form that people could complete to get an idea if 
there is a health problem in the area. 
 

B. Lewis-Michl responded that there is no form because there is no method to use the 
information.  Public health officials monitor infectious diseases and there is good information 
about cancer, birth defects, births, and deaths.  She added that the NYSDOH can help people sort 
out various types of cancer.  One out of every two men and one out of every three women 
acquire some form of cancer.  (The NYSDOH’s cancer mapping Web site is 
http://www.health.state.ny.us/nysdoh/cancer/csiiweb2.htm.).  The Web site provides cancer data 
per zip codes.  The cancer registry is for a geographic area or addresses to determine if a pattern 
of cancer occurrences are unusual.  Cancer data in the last 10 years can also be made available 
for specific street addresses that cover a small area. 
 

C. Rielly asked what would be the next step after a group or area is identified believing to 
have a high rate of cancer. 
 

B. Lewis-Michl responded to conduct a cancer surveillance.  Census tract locations 
would assist in the cancer profile of the area.  The study area is very important. 
 

C. Rielly asked whether a resident would have to spearhead the action. 
 

B. Lewis-Michl responded that the NYSDOH would need to know the area of concern 
and then arrange a meeting with the NYSDOH Cancer Surveillance Director.  She added that 
there could be more than one study area. 
 

T. Ausfeld agreed that there could be more than one study area. 
 

http://www.health.state.ny.us/nysdoh/cancer/csiiweb2.htm


Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 8 of 28 
 
 
  

B. Lewis-Michl said the NYSDOH could organize a meeting for the residents of a 
designated area and provide some educational information as well as gather health information.  
She added that some individuals may want to keep their respective health concerns to 
themselves.  She suggested local organizers to contact Lorraine Benton with NYSDOH at 518-
402-7950 to plan small group meetings. 
 
Attachment 3, page 4.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated 
December 10, 2001 

The monthly mean average data on precipitation (chart P 2 – 4, 
Table 2.1) is incorrect.  It does not show spring and fall rain and 
runoff periods on the watershed. 

Attachment 4, page 2.  
Corps written response to 
comment/issue. 

Please clarify your request with regard to precipitation data. 

 
T. Ausfeld said the chart does not show the high and low levels of precipitation. 

 
G. Moreau responded that the chart presents the averages on a monthly basis. 

 
T. Ausfeld said it does not look good with the spring runoffs and rains (heavy rain event) 

like we had yesterday [peak and spikes]. 
 

G. Goepfert asked whether the data was available.   
 

T. Ausfeld said that it was a problem because the peaks of rain are carried downstream. 
 

G. Goepfert said in the future sampling crews will note the weather pattern conditions 
prior to the collection of samples. 
 

T. Ausfeld said he was concerned about the ponds during heavy rain events. 
 
Attachment 3, page 4.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated 
December 10, 2001. 

In my mind, this report indicates a very large problem within the 
watershed.  Core samples should be done at the first dam site on the 
Black Creek after NEIP and at the Route 158 Bridge (east of the 
bridge) in the sediments of the Watervliet Reservoir. 

Attachment 4, Page 2. 
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

Deeper sediment sampling will be performed in the Black Creek as 
part of a follow-on Remedial Investigation/Data Gap Workplan, 
which will be provided for review by the RAB and regulatory 
agencies; the locations tested may not be those suggested. 

 
T. Ausfeld said the Metweld well needs to be tested. 

 
R. Groves said he would look for the testing information. 

 
G. Goepfert said there will be testing in deeper sediment. 

 
C. Rielly said sampling is needed in the delta area. 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 9 of 28 
 
 
  

 
G. Goepfert asked if data already exists for the delta area. 

 
J. McCullough said he would check the availability of sampling data in the delta area. 

 
G. Goepfert said at this time he could not make any promise to test the delta area. 

 
Attachment 3, Page 5.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated May 
02, 2002 

How many underground tanks remain and are being used in the 
Industrial Park? 

Attachment 4, Page 3. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

Refer your question directly to the Galesi Group. 

 
J. McCullough said a list of removed and existing tanks is presented in the Archive 

report. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 5.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated May 
02, 2002 

What is going to be done with NEIP Landfill?  Is it an approved 
landfill? 

Attachment 4, Page 3. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

NYSDEC will address, at the 17 October 2002 meeting. 

 
J. McCullough said he reviewed the area with Tim Alund and he covered this question at 

the April 29, 2002, RAB meeting.  The landfill has been covered over.  The piles have been 
recycled.  The pallets were chipped and the steel was removed for reuse. 
 

C. Rielly said the landfill is on a wetland. 
 

J. McCullough said no, it is not on a wetland. 
 

C. Rielly said we saw a mountain of stuff on the wetlands and it was removed before J. 
McCullough conducted his site visit.  C. Rielly asked what was the stuff and where was it taken. 

 
J. McCullough replied that this question had been asked previously and answered. 

 
Attachment 3, Page 5.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated May 
02, 2002 

How many SPDES permits are approved in the Industrial Park? 

Attachment 4, Page 3. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

NYSDEC will address, at the 17 October 2002 meeting. 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 10 of 28 
 
 
  

 
G. Goepfert said three SPDES permits were approved for companies in the Industrial 

Park. 
 

Attachment 3, Page 5.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated May 
02, 2002 

Where are their discharges and are signs posted on the Black Creek? 

Attachment 4, Page 3. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

NYSDEC will address, at the 17 October 2002 meeting. 

 
T. Ausfeld said there are signs but it does not matter because no one can go down there 

and see. 
 

J. McCullough said he did not know who designed the Industrial Park. 
 

T. Ausfeld said why can’t the Corps design an updated system for discharges from the 
Industrial Park property. 
 

G. Goepfert responded the owner of the property is responsible for that. 
 

T. Ausfeld said he does not care what the Galesi Group is doing … he cares about Black 
Creek. 
 

G. Goepfert responded that Mr. Ausfeld needs to talk to the Galesi Group.  He added that 
the Galesi Group will respond to RAB member questions. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 5.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated May 
02, 2002 

How many spills have occurred in the last five years? 

Attachment 4, Page 3. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

NYSDEC will address, at the 17 October 2002 meeting. The archive 
search report identifies spills on page 4-137. 

 
J. McCullough said Allen Geisendorfer is checking on the number of spills. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 11 of 28 
 
 
  

 
Attachment 3, Page 5.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated May 
02, 2002 

How close to the Black Creek are the chemical dumps? (Army) 

Attachment 4, Page 3. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

The only items that have been found in proximity to Black Creek 
were the items found recently (August 2002) on the property of the 
Guilderland Central School District. The U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers took responsibility for the investigation, removal and 
proper disposal of items discovered, which included vials of calcium 
hypochlorite, protective ointments for the skin and eyes, and 
miscellaneous paint cans, bottles of distilled water/0.1% citric acid 
[for plasma regeneration], and bottles of dried plasma granules. 

 
T. Ausfeld asked if there are not other burial areas on the site. 

 
 G. Goepfert responded none that he knew as of now.  He added that the Corps will be 
doing more GPR work in the burn pit area [AOC # 3]. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 5.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated May 
02, 2002 

Why has the buffer zone along the Black Creek been removed? 

Attachment 4, Page 3. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

NYSDEC will address, at the 17 October 2002 meeting. 

 
J. McCullough said the NYSDEC does not regulate the buffer zone.  The City of 

Watervliet or the Town of Guilderland would have to address that. 
 

C. Rielly said there is something holding up the watershed study’s revised rules. 
 
 R. Groves said it is the County of Albany that reviews the rules and regulations and that 
he will check out the status of the watershed study’s revised rules and get back to Mr. Ausfeld.  
Mr. Groves added that the county’s contractor might still be reviewing the rules and regulations. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 5.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated May 
02, 2002 

How can a plan be put together to protect the Black Creek? 

Attachment 4, Page 3. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

NYSDEC will address, at the 17 October 2002 meeting. 

 
J. McCullough said the watershed management plan is prepared by the Town of 

Guilderland and Watervliet. 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 12 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 3, Page 5.  
Letter from Mr. Thadeus 
W. Ausfeld, dated May 
02, 2002 

Why can’t raw materials stored in the Industrial Park be covered?  
(All Types – [including Federal Stockpiles]) 

Attachment 4, Page 3. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

Refer your question directly to the Galesi Group. 

 
C. Rielly asked what was the status of the stockpile in Area of Concern 5. 
 
D. Wesolowski responded zinc and aluminum oxide (such as for making sandpaper) are 

stored.  The DLA will continue to sell the stockpile and expects the stockpile will be depleted in 
2009.  Mr. Wesolowski added that the program is subject to market demands. 

 
C. Rielly asked what has been done about the footprints. 
 
G. Moreau responded that there are no exposure pathways.  The Corps is looking at 

surface water runoff and that the ponds were built in an effort to address runoff.  Mr. Moreau 
added that in the long term, the Corps will have to address the soil left behind. 

 
C. Rielly asked whether the footprint soil is stationary or does it go to the ponds.  He also 

asked about the ponds. 
 
G. Moreau responded that the ponds will be addressed. 
 
C. Rielly asked if the ponds were on Army property. 
 
D. Wesolowski responded yes, the ponds were all on DLA-leased property. 
 
G. Moreau said that cleanup of the ponds will take into account the future re-use plans for 

the site. 
 
G. Goepfert said materials are in drums. 
 
D. Wesolowski added that materials are in drums and bulk stockpiles.  Migration from 

stockpiles is very, very limited.  He added that DLA brought in stone to create a base – the 
metals bonded with the stone to minimize spreading contamination. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 13 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 3, Page 7.  
RAB letter dated July 23, 
2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter J.R. 
Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

The objective of the RIR document was to determine the presence or 
absence of contamination within the confines of the FSADVA as a 
prelude to determine remedial measures, as required.  Black Creek is 
one of the tributaries to the Watervliet Reservoir which is the main 
source of drinking water for the residents of the Town of 
Guilderland, the City of Watervliet and some neighboring 
communities.  It is obvious from the information contained in this 
report that contamination of Black Creek has occurred.  It is 
imperative to address resulting contamination beyond the confines of 
the FSADVA downstream and into the reservoir.  Only after 
additional testing has been done, as proposed here, and other 
comments on the report have been addressed, can the mutual 
objectives of this RIR document be met. 

Attachment 4, Page 4. 
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

Further monitoring and characterization of Black Creek sediment and 
water quality upstream and downstream of the former Depot will be 
proposed in the follow-on Remedial Investigation/Data Gap 
Workplan. Additional sediment sampling in the pond at AOC (1) will 
be undertaken as part of a Focused Feasibility Study, and will target 
those contaminants of concern that have been shown to exceed the 
sediment criteria. 

 
R. Gemme said he believes contamination has reached as far down as the reservoir and 

that the Corps needs to find out what is buried in the reservoir soil. 
 

D. Wesolowski asked whether there was any timetable to dredge the reservoir. 
 

T. Ausfeld responded no, they might raise the dam. 
 

G. Goepfert said the Corps will do deeper sediment sampling in the creek. 
 

R. Gemme said the sediment might have stayed and built up rather than flow 
downstream. 
 

C. Rielly said he would like the Corps to sample the delta area of the reservoir. 
 

G. Goepfert responded that he and J. McCullough will first seek existing data regarding 
the delta area.  G. Goepfert added that the Corps recognizes the RAB’s concern and will consider 
sampling of the delta area subsequent to and based on the analysis results of Black Creek 
sampling closer to the Industrial Park.  He said the Corps will sample areas of low mobility in 
the stream further upstream from the dam and closer to the industrial park.  
 
 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 14 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 3, Page 8.  
RAB letter dated July 23, 
2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter J.R. 
Buttner, Ph.D., and Local 
Community Members of 
the RAB 

There are many references in the RIR document comparing testing 
data obtain in the 9 areas of concern (AOC) to background data.  
These comparisons were used as the basis for decision making 
concerning required levels of remediation at each AOC. 
 

a. No reference was found in the RIR document concerning any 
analysis and summary of the background data that was to 
develop comparisons. 

 
b. Was the background information analyzed and massaged 

statistically to formulate comparisons?  There were several 
anomalies or outliers found in the data.  If they were included 
in the comparisons, they would skew the results to the 
conservative side and thereby lessen the required remedial 
effort.  They do not adequately reflect the pollution in the 
FSADVA/NEIP. 

 
Please recall that our previous communication of February 6, 
2002, highlighted the problem that arises when two dissimilar 
data populations are merged ant the result is a favorable 
outlook; geologist call this effect “salting the outcrop”. 
 
Outliers were found in the following locations and therefore 
data from these locations and any similar locations must be 
excluded from the determination of the pre-FSADVA 
background: 
 
" Table 3.3 – Carcinogenic PAH in AOC8-SD28 
" Table 3.4 – Carcinogenic PAH and Non-Carcinogenic 

PAH in AOC2-HP10 
" Table 3.2 – Semivolatiles in AOC8-SW22 & SW23 

Attachment 4, Page 4. 
Corps written response to 
comment/issue 

a. Pg. 3-1, para. 3.2.1 contains two pages of discussion 
concerning background data. 

 
b. Absolute result values were used for comparisons; no 

statistical analysis of the raw data were performed. Technical 
Assistance Guidance Memorandum (TAGM) values will be 
used to compare analyses results for organic compounds in an 
effort to ascertain the necessity for remedial actions. All 
background soil organic data exhibited results below TAGM 
levels. 

 
Per question “a,” D. Geraghty said contamination would not depend on background 

numbers. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 15 of 28 
 
 
  

Per questions “b,” G. Moreau said Parsons will use state TAG (Technical Assistance 
Guidance) data rather than rely totally on background data. 

 
J. McCullough said that additional information (state TAG data) is useful because there 

are pockets of naturally occurring material. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 8.  
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter J.R. 
Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

a. Figure 3.27 shows many locations where BEHP contamination 
exists in AOC8, Black Creek.  It appears that none of the other 
AOC were tested for this chemical.  This does not allow for 
determination of the source of contamination.  Will additional 
testing be done in the other AOCs to find the source of this 
pollutant in Black Creek?  If not, why not? 

 
b. The results of older testing in this AOC shown on Parsons 

Drawing No. 18 (Job 736741) previously submitted to the RAB 
should also be summarized on Figures 3.27 and 3.28. 

Attachment 4, Page 4. 
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

a. All Areas of Concern (AOCs) were tested for BEHP, except for 
AOC (5). It was detected in these AOCs: 

 
 AOC 1 – surface water (SW) and sediment (SED) 
 AOC 2 – SW/SED/Groundwater (GW)/soil 
 AOC 3 – soil/GW 
            AOC 6-  not detected (ND) 
 AOC 7-  soil/GW 
 AOC 8- SW/SED 
 AOC 9-  GW. 
 

There will be some additional testing for BEHP. 
 
b. The previous data will be presented on Figures 3.27 and 3.28 in 

the same format shown in the present figures, i.e., exceedances of 
TAGM criteria for BEHP and metals will be displayed. The 
previous drawing # 18 in its entirety will be included in the 
Remedial Investigation report. 

 
Per question “a,” D. Geraghty said BEHP bis(2-ethylhexyl) phthalate (BEHP) is a 

plasticizer and more information can be located on the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease 
Registry Web site TOXFAQs.  He said BEHP is commonly used in plastics and evaporates 
quickly. 
 

G. Goepfert said the Corps will be doing additional testing. 
 
 D. Geraghty said if testing shows BEHP contamination in wells that exceeds drinking 
water standards action will need to be taken. 
 
 Per questions “b,” G. Goepfert said the drawing will be comprehensive. 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 16 of 28 
 
 
  

 
Attachment 3. Page 9.  
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

AOC2 
a. This area was originally included in a NYSDEC Superfund list of 

sites.  What, if any effect have the results of the testing program 
had on this determination? 

 
b. The report indicated that groundwater and subsurface soil 

sampling was done in a 10-foot grid pattern.  It appears from the 
information shown in figures 3.10 and 3.11 that the pattern is 
closer to 15 feet.  What is the basis for grid site selection? 

 
c. The report indicates a selection of 5 pill bottles for testing.  The 

results are questionable to adequately represent the full range of 
chemicals present.  Five samples are not considered enough to 
provide for random sampling of the thousands of bottles located in 
the area. 

Attachment 4, Page 5.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

a. The NYSDEC advises that testing has not changed the 
determination. 

 
b. Ten (10) feet was the basis, as specified in the Workplan. The 

“scaled” drawing will be noted as an “approximate” scale. 
 
c. All environmental media has been sampled at AOC (2) to allow a 

feasibility study to be conducted. The sampling of the pill bottles 
was performed for screening purposes only, and not meant to be 
fully representative of the contents of all bottles found at AOC(2). 
The analyses performed confirmed the suspicion that the bottles 
contained salt or iodine tablets. The bottles sent for analysis were 
one of each of the different bottle types found at AOC(2)(i.e., 4 
bottle types); one was analyzed for sodium and the others for 
iodide, cyanide, sodium and chloride. 

 
 Pertaining to question “a,” J. McCullough said Mrs. Burns property was reviewed in light 
of Superfund, but did not meet the criteria. 
 
 G. Goepfert said the Army under its Formerly Used Defense Sites (FUDS) program will 
pay for the cleanup of AOC2. 
 
 Pertaining to question “b,” G. Goepfert said the drawing will be revised. 
 
 Pertaining to question “c,” G. Moreau said the sampling was targeted for specific 
purposes. 
 
 D. Geraghty said every sampling event indicates salt tablets.  He added that the focus 
here is to clean up the site; however, no contamination located has presented health concerns. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 17 of 28 
 
 
  

 T. Ausfeld asked if that was the same view of high school.  He also asked if a GPR will 
be conducted at the high school. 
 
 J. McCullough said that test pits are needed to find anything really big. 
 
 D. Geraghty and G. Goepfert said that there will be extensive remediation when needed 
per test pit results. 
 
 G. Goepfert said the school bus property investigation detected hazardous substances and 
the pill bottles on Mrs. Burns’ property do not contain hazardous substances. 
 
 T. Ausfeld said he believes there is or will be contamination in private wells. 
 
 D. Geraghty said that private wells have been sampled and nothing was found. 
 
 G. Goepfert said the Corps will add the “c” paragraph to the Remedial Investigation 
Report. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 9.  
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

The presently closed Town of Guilderland landfill was originally used 
by the DOD.  Do we have any idea what they dumped there?  Since 
there was a federal activity involved at the landfill, the RAB requests 
that samples be taken of the water and sediment in the drainway of the 
landfill to determine if they have a FSADVA/NEIP “signature.” 

Attachment 4, Page 5.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

The Archive Search Report (ASR) indicates that the landfill area was 
used as a borrow pit; no records indicate that D.O.D. dumped there. 

 
 G. Goepfert said the bottom line is if any material is linked to the Army, the Army will 
take action to remediate the contamination. 
 
 D. Geraghty asked what the RAB members meant by the term “signature.” 
 
 C. Rielly responded “signature” refers to substances and/or compounds showing up in 
contamination pertaining unique to Army use. 
 
 D. Geraghty said none of the contamination is unusual. 
 
 T. Ausfeld said there could be other burial pits located in the area outside of the depot 
facility.  He asked who had the actual documentation of locations of the burial pits. 
 
 D. Geraghty said he has reviewed the files and found no such documentation.  He added 
that the agencies are aware to be cautious to look for other burial sites. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 18 of 28 
 
 
  

 T. Ausfeld said burial sites could be located across the railroad tracks.  He suggested the 
Corps publish a newspaper article asking the public whether they have knowledge of or are 
concerned about burial pits to inform G. Goepfert about potential locations of burial pits. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 10.  
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

A laboratory study of fish and invertebrates i.e. crabs, frogs, snails, 
etc., living in the Southern Landfill retention pond, should be 
undertaken to evaluate the effects of these animals (i.e., by regional 
predators) on the biota of the surrounding region.  The RAB is 
especially interested to obtain information on the effects of the 
contaminants in the DOD’s Southern Landfill on the regions rare and 
endangered species. 

Attachment 4, Page 5.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

We will consult with the Fish and Wildlife staff of the NYSDEC prior 
to finalizing the Remedial Investigation/Data Gap Workplan. 

 
 J. McCullough said normally the NYSDEC does not see any other than substances that 
bioaccumulate like PCBs.  He added that no rare or endangered species were identified on the 
depot.  
 
 C. Rielly said that Mr. Ward Stone would be a contact. 
 
 D. Geraghty said the NYSDEC has a Fish and Wildlife Division that does that work. 
 
 C. Rielly said that it was needed to net some fish and look if they appear normal [more 
than a visual study was meant]. 
 
 G. Goepfert said that the Corps could net fish and check for normalcy as a biological 
qualitative assessment. 
 
 G. Moreau said that the contamination study in sediment does not lead one to believe 
there is a problem with biota. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 10.  
Letter form Dr. Peter 
Buttner and Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, 
dated July 23, 2002. 

The Guilderland Central School District has apparently drilled a 
number of irrigation wells across the Black Creek from the District’s 
bus garage.  What effects will the use of these wells have on the 
migration of pollutants from the burn pit (now considered for 
substantial federal attention) and other polluted sites in the NEIP?  
What hydrologic modeling has been done to evaluate the effects of the 
FSADVA/NEIP contaminants on the many wells that surround the 
FSADVA/NEIP? 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 19 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 4, Page 5.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

The intention of the burn pit interim removal action is to eliminate a 
source of contamination. It is anticipated that follow-up monitoring, to 
be conducted subsequent to the removal action, will indicate an 
improvement in groundwater quality proximate to the burn pit site. 
[Beyond this monitoring work, no modeling is planned, or has been 
done]. Post-remediation monitoring that we plan to conduct should 
help assess the effects irrigation wells are having on the migration of 
pollutants. 

 
 C. Rielly asked if there are enough wells to do the monitoring. 
 
 G. Goepfert responded yes, there are enough monitoring wells. 
 
 D. Geraghty said yes, there are enough wells; however, the NYSDOH may request the 
Corps to extend monitoring beyond two years. 
 
 C. Rielly said apparently the school shoulders the responsibility for irrigating fields with 
contaminated groundwater. 
 
 D. Geraghty said if something is found the NYSDOH would take action. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 10.  
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

We understand that a comprehensive program has been conducted to 
contact former workers at the FSADVA/NEIP site.  In an effort to jog 
the memories and/or consciences of former FSADVA (and perhaps 
later NEIP) employees, they should be re-contacted, provided with 
absolute written immunity and their activities as employees of, or 
contractors to, the federal government. 

Attachment 4, Page 6.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

The U. S. Army Corps of Engineers is not authorized to grant 
immunity.  It is planned to compile the past interview information in 
bound form, as a formal document for the site. If the RAB 
membership can provide the names of any former Depot employees 
who have not been interviewed previously, the individual(s) will be 
contacted and, if they would be open to being interviewed, we will 
interview them. Note also that formal Records of Communication 
(ROC) were included as Appendix A of the Archive Search Report, 
dated August 1999, prepared by EA Engineering, Science and 
Technology. 

 
 C. Rielly said RAB members have a lack of faith in the completeness of the information 
from the people who came forward.  They may have been proud to help the war effort and 
inadvertently contaminated areas. 
 
 T. Ausfeld said some former depot employees refused to talk with Lori Davidson, the 
DLA interviewer, and were concerned there could be an effect on their retirement, etc. 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 20 of 28 
 
 
  

 
 G. Goepfert said it is a trust issue and that barrier cannot be broken. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 11.  
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

The NYSDOH and the NYSDEC must be encouraged to investigate 
past, present and future pollution caused directly or indirectly by the 
NEIP such as:  (a). the State Pollution Discharge elimination System 
(SPDES) permits for tenants of the NEIP; and, (2) the dump that was 
placed by the NEIP without a permit and without local, state, or 
federal oversight into the federal wetland that is itself near-adjacent 
both to the Black Creek and to the heavily-contaminated DOD 
Southern Landfill, a state Superfund Site on the NEIP property. 

Attachment 4, Page 6.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

NYSDEC and NYSDOH representatives will respond at the meeting 
of 17 October 2002. 
 

 
 J. McCullough said some of those concerns have been addressed already.  He added that 
a dump on an owner’s facility is permited; the wetland is state and not federal; and SPDES 
permits are allowed. 
 
 C. Rielly said he is concerned about SPDES permits. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 11. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

In the Black Creek, BEHP is above background as well as NYSDEC 
Class C criteria.  Where is it coming from and what will be done about 
it?  What action is usually taken by state environmental and public 
health agencies when a contaminant is found to exist at such levels in 
a drinking water supply?  Could we please have copies of the agency 
documents that set out the policies and procedures to be followed in 
such cases by each of the state regulatory agencies represented as 
advisors to the RAB? 

Attachment 4, Page 6.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

We are not aware of the source of BEHP; BEHP was detected as 
stated in para. IIIa. (above) and upstream in Black Creek. Additional 
sampling, to include analysis for BEHP, will be proposed in the 
follow-on Remedial Investigation/Data Gap Workplan. The concerns 
you have expressed regarding drinking water will be addressed by 
NYSDEC at the meeting on 17 October 2002. 

 
 J. McCullough said if there is any contamination found in drinking water supply the 
county and state agencies would be notified and the contamination would be addressed.  He 
added that state regulations for every department are provided on the state’s Web site. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 21 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 3, Page 11. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

What is the status of the requests by the RAB that samples be taken: 
 
a. at the northern end of the NEIP where ISOW9 is on the Black 

Creek; 
b. of the water and sediment below the dams, 
c. of sediment and water ponding in front of the Watervliet 

Reservoir? 

Attachment 4, Page 6.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

a. Additional sampling at the northern end of Northeast Industrial 
Park (NEIP) where ISOW9 is on Black Creek will be addressed in 
the follow-on Remedial Investigation/Data Gap Workplan. 

 
b. Sampling of the water and sediment below the dams is not 

anticipated at this time. 
 
c. Sampling of sediment and water ponding in front of the Watervliet 

Reservoir is not anticipated at this time. 
 

 
 Pertaining to question “b,” G. Moreau said the Corps will address it when investigations 
detect the need. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 11. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

What is the answer to the RAB question regarding the DOD’s reason 
for construction of dams on the Black Creek?  History?  Contaminant 
trapping? 

Attachment 4, Page 6.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

Information cannot be located that cites the reason for the construction 
of the dams. 
 

 
 G. Moreau said the old topo map shows presence of dams, but no known information. 
 
 J. McCullough said there could be a variety of reasons. 
 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 22 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 3, Page 11. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

If state and federal pollution criteria were found to be exceeded by 
recent and past FSADVA/NEIP sampling by environmental 
regulators, then why had no action been taken or recommended by 
those regulators? 

Attachment 4, Page 6.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

NYSDEC representative will address at the 17 October 2002 meeting. 

 
 J. McCullough said the Corps was contacted and took over the investigation and 
remediation. 
 
 C. Rielly said there is a difference between state and federal standards, and the charts in 
the RIR show the contradiction of standards. 
 
 J. McCullough said the state and federal agencies are working on those differences.  He 
added that the state does not do the work if the potentially responsible party does it. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 12. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

What was the reference made to “double the criteria” in order to 
recommend action? 

Attachment 4, Page 6.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

The reference to “double the criteria” is not intended to recommend 
remedial action. The references to “double the criteria” are to help 
quantify, in a simple and consistent manner, how high the 
concentrations are relative to the regulatory criteria. 

 
 C. Rielly said he does not know where the term “double the criteria” was referenced and 
that it was taken out of context.  He asked if it meant no action will be taken unless the criteria 
was doubled. 
 
 G. Moreau said there are references to “double the criteria” in the RIR and that Parsons 
will cull the document and clarify those references. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 23 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 3, Page 12. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

What does the creosote from railroad ties turn into and has that been a 
contaminating influence on the past and recent sediment analyses? 

Attachment 4, Page 7.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

Creosote does contain polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs). 
PAHs are also contained in asphalt, vehicle exhaust, etc. PAHs have 
been evidenced in the pond sediment at AOC(1), at an upstream Black 
Creek location (SD28) and a Black Creek location within the former 
Schenectady Army Depot (SD19). 

 
 C. Rielly asked if creosote is a hazard to the water supply. 
 
 J. McCullough responded that creosote saturates the first half-inch of the surface but does 
not go any farther.  Sampling results of the Watervliet Reservoir would determine if there is 
adverse impact on the water supply. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 12. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

Does the RIR document compare all ground water and surface water 
data to Class A drinking water criteria?  If not, why not?  People are 
drinking the water that flows out of the polluted FSADVA/NEIP site! 

Attachment 4, Page 6.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

“Class A” applies to surface water—and that was the comparison. 
Groundwater data is compared to “Class GA” drinking water 
standards. 

 
 G. Moreau said yes, the RIR compares the data to both sets of criteria. 
 
 C. Rielly asked how does it compare to Class A. 
 
 G. Moreau responded that Class A is more stringent; however, he could not address it 
without the document at hand. 
 
 J. McCullough referred to the state Web site for information on the regulations. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 24 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 3, Page 12. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

If contaminant screening criteria are exceeded, how can the 
assumption be made that these values do not pose a significant hazard 
to human health or the environment?  This is especially true since 
there have been limited studies regarding the cumulative and/or 
combining affect of the many contaminants found in the 
FSADVA/NEIP. 

Attachment 4, Page 7.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

NYSDOH representative will address at the 17 October 2002 meeting. 

 
 R. Gemme said the RAB thinks there is potential of exposure from the Watervliet 
Reservoir. 
 
 G. Geraghty said the NYSDOH requires sampling and it is done and recorded.  He added 
that the NYSDOH does not know how all combined contamination exposure effects humans.  
When standards are exceeded, action is taken. 
 
 C. Rielly said if contamination is not supposed to be there, it should be removed from the 
reservoir. 
 
 T. Ausfeld said the RAB needs to see and compare the raw water data from the last five 
years. 
 
 D. Geraghty said people drink treated water not raw water and there is no exposure. 
 
 G. Goepfert said the Corps will ask Nick Ostapkovich, Deputy General Manager of 
Watervliet Reservoir, for the raw water data. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 12. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

Is the vertical extent of the contaminated soil impacts from AOC3 
known? 

Attachment 4, Page 7.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

Yes. The vertical extent of soil impacts at AOC(3) has been 
adequately characterized. 

 
 G. Goepfert said that soil boring data is presented. 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 25 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 3, Page 12 
and 13. RAB letter 
dated July 23, 2002, 
signed by Mr. Raymond 
Gemme, P.E., co-
authored by Peter J.R. 
Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

We understand that twenty years of water testing data from the City of 
Watervliet has been made available to the RAB.  We have yet to see 
this data and would like to have a copy for our analysis and review.  
What has the 20-year data provided by the City of Watervliet 
revealed?  At what levels do they test?  What are the accuracy and 
precision of their measurements?  How does Watervliet’s sampling, 
measurement processes and analytical techniques compare with those 
used to compile the August, 1998 data displayed on Parson’s Drawing 
18 (Job 736741)?  Did Watervliet’s program find any of the 
substances that the USACOE (Job 736741) found in the Black Creek 
in August 1998 or at any other time?  How does the City of 
Watervliet’s ability to find such pollutants compare with that of the 
laboratory used by Parsons?  How do the average costs per sample 
compare?  Given the analytical capabilities of both entities is it 
reasonable to compare their results? 

Attachment 4, Page 7.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

The water testing data from the City of Watervliet will be provided to 
the RAB. 

 
 G. Goepfert said the real question is – is there anything in the water that is of concern 
from the depot.  He added that the answer is that the treated water product is safe to drink. 
 
 T. Ausfeld said there are several tributaries that feed into the reservoir and the raw water 
needs to be sampled. 
 
 J. McCullough asked if that sampling was done, how does one know which tributary is 
the cause. 
 G. Goepfert said studies have been done from the property downstream, not from the 
reservoir backwards. 
 
 T. Ausfeld said the contamination should be traceable and the data does not show that. 
 
 J. McCullough said there is no signature from the depot. 
 
 D. Geraghty said sampling is done from the source outwards. 
 
 T. Ausfeld said what matters is the Black Creek. 
 
 G. Goepfert said the Black Creek is an area of concern. 
 
 T. Ausfeld said the number one problem in the environment is the NEIP since it was 
established. 
 
 C. Rielly said apparently since the Watervliet Reservoir has not shown any 
contamination, then no action is required? 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 26 of 28 
 
 
  

 G. Geraghty said the raw water is sampled and the county health department has the data. 
 
 G. Goepfert said from the treatment operators’ viewpoint they have to look at the raw 
water. 
 
 G. Geraghty said the focus is on the finished water because it is drinking water, and the 
raw water is important to make the finished water. 
 
 T. Ausfeld said the raw water is not being tested and he is concerned about all of the 
runoff from NEIP into the Black Creek. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 13. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

The NYSDEC representative to the RAB has often said that if RAB 
members have any concerns that are under the jurisdiction of their 
agency, then those concerns will be researched, investigated and 
reported in writing to the RAB.  Yet, members of the RAB have often 
raised the same questions and issues at meeting after meeting.  For 
instance, what SPDES permits have been issued to tenants and owners 
of the NEIP?  This, and similar environmental questions have been 
asked by RAB members at almost every meeting.  When can the RAB 
member expect answers to such questions? 
 
(When serious, relevant environmental and public health questions are 
presented by the RAB to the state environmental and public health 
regulatory representatives present at various RAB meetings, the RAB 
members are told:  “those questions should be directed to other parts 
of their respective agencies.”  Well why don’t THEY direct the 
questions to those parts of their agencies and find the answers?  Are 
not these regulatory participants representatives of their agencies and 
should they then function as information conduits for this federal 
Restoration Advisory Board?  If they do not feel competent to speak 
for their respective agencies perhaps they should be replaced by hose 
who are able to more properly assist the RAB in this very difficult 
public federal activity?) 

Attachment 4, Page 7.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

The NYDEC representative will respond at the 17 October 2002 
meeting. 

 
 J. McCullough said he had been involved with the FSADVA project for a long time and 
would continue to stay involved for the duration of the project. 
 
 D. Geraghty said it is his job to assess human exposure on 100 sites in 30 counties.  He 
added that NYSDOH sampled private wells and determined there were no completed exposure 
pathways.  He said a potential exposure pathway is Watervliet Reservoir.  He concluded that he 
is accessible to calls from RAB members. 
 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 27 of 28 
 
 
  

 C. Rielly said the RAB comment/issue was a strong statement.  He added that RAB 
members would appreciate the NYSDEC and NYSDOH representatives to follow-up within their 
department and provide the responses to the RAB questions. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 13. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

Why isn’t protection of the Black Creek, a major source of drinking 
water, mentioned in the objectives of the Focused Feasibility Study 
for AOC3?  Why doesn’t the state environmental and public health 
regulators on the RAB insist that this become a major consideration? 

Attachment 4, Page 7.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

The Remedial Investigation focuses on Black Creek as an Area of 
Concern (AOC(8)). 

 
 R. Gemme said this goes back to what G. Goepfert said about working from the source 
outward. 
 
Attachment 3, Page 12. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

How does the intermittent nature of the Black Creek affect the RIR 
results and recommendations?  Again, (see item 29, above) where 
were our state environmental and public health regulators “when the 
creek went dry?”  Noxious substances can continue to flow into Black 
Creek which exceed the “dilution standards” for the NEIP tenant’s 
SPDES permits? 

Attachment 4, Page 7.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

The Remedial Investigation has not been designed to address the 
intermittent nature of the Black Creek. 

 
 J. McCullough asked what if it does not rain for six months and we cannot use the water. 
 
 C. Rielly said he is concerned about the number of SPDES permits in the watershed area. 
 
 G. Goepfert said SPDES permits take into account how water is treated before it is 
discharged to Black Creek. 
 
 D. Geraghty said SPDES permit engineers are pretty conservative in presenting data and 
establishing treatment systems. 
 
 R. Gemme said SPDES permitting considers drinking water supply. 
  
 
 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002                      Page 28 of 28 
 
 
  

Attachment 3, Page 13. 
RAB letter dated July 
23, 2002, signed by Mr. 
Raymond Gemme, P.E., 
co-authored by Peter 
J.R. Buttner, Ph.D., and 
Local Community 
Members of the RAB 

Why was construction by NEIP permitted in the vicinity of AOC3 
when it was known that the site was a source of pollution and 
contaminated soils?  It was reported to be on the aerial photographs 
that these agencies shared.  Doesn’t the federal government have any 
control of their contaminated sites?  Isn’t the federal government 
interested in containment of their polluting contaminants so as to 
expedite their removal and enhancement of the polluted location?  Or 
is the federal government eager to support such policies and activities 
that, in effect, disperse the polluting contaminants and thereby reduce 
their concentrations so that they fall “within accepted limits,” and thus 
the federal contaminated site will “require no further action”? 

Attachment 4, Page 7.  
Corps written response 
to comment/issue 

The property owner has the right to develop his property within the 
guidelines of planning and zoning policies of local authorities. The U. 
S. Army Corps of Engineers is not a regulatory agency. Note that the 
property owner relocated (to the north) the footprint of the new 
warehouse to avoid the contaminated area at AOC (3), and has 
postponed the addition to the warehouse, so as to allow the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers to perform an interim removal action in the 
contaminated area identified at AOC (3). 

 
 T. Ausfeld said it was contaminated property and they should not have been allowed to 
build. 
 
 D. Geraghty said they were told to stop building and they did. 
 
Meeting Closure 
 
 G. Goepfert said minutes will be prepared for this meeting and the RIR document will be 
revised per the discussion.  He added that he would work to secure funding for work on the site 
to continue. 
 
 C. Rielly said he appreciates the Corps’ work and bringing the group together.  He added 
that he appreciates the Corps allowing the RAB to voice their concerns about Watervliet 
Reservoir even though it may not be associated with the depot. 
 
 G. Goepfert said the Corps has developed a good rapport with the RAB members and has 
assembled a good team that depends upon each other to get the work done.  He added that the 
RAB members are an important part of the team and he has learned a lot from the RAB 
members. 
 
 D. Geraghty asked when is the next RAB meeting. 
 
 G. Goepfert said the next RAB meeting will be considered in January 2003 and that it 
would be an evening meeting.  He added that at that time there will be documents to review. 
 
 The meeting was adjourned at 3:23 p.m. 



Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002 ! Attachment 1                      Page 1 of 2 
 
  

Attachment 1 
 

RAB Working Group Meeting Follow-Up Activities/Responses to Questions 
Per Meeting Minutes – October 17, 2002 

 
 
1. Reference:  minutes, page 5.  G. Goepfert suggested that T. Ausfeld review the oral 

history and compare the persons interviewed with the individuals he believes observed 
the dumping.  G. Goepfert added that the Corps will talk to the persons T. Ausfeld 
identifies. 

 
 
 

2. Reference:  minutes, page 8.  R. Groves said he would look for the testing information. 
 

 
3. Reference:  minutes, page 9.  G. Goepfert asked if data already exists for the delta area.  

J. McCullough said he would check the availability of sampling data in the delta area. 
 

 
4. Reference:  minutes, page 9.  C. Rielly said we saw a mountain of stuff on the wetlands 

and it was removed before J. McCullough conducted his site visit.  C. Rielly asked what 
was the stuff and where was it taken. 

 
Response/Follow-up: Mr. McCullough advised that this question has been answered 
previously. 
 
 

5. Reference:  minutes, page 11.  R. Groves said it is the County of Albany that reviews the 
rules and regulations and that he will check out the status of the watershed study’s 
revised rules and get back to Mr. Ausfeld.  Mr. Groves added that the county’s contractor 
might still be reviewing the rules and regulations. 

 
 

6. Reference:  minutes, page 15.  Per question “a,” D. Geraghty said BEHP bis(2-
ethylhexyl) phthalate (BEHP) is a plasticizer and more information can be located on the 
Agency forToxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR) Web site TOXFAQs.  He 
said BEHP is commonly used in plastics and evaporates quickly. 

 
 

Response/Follow-up:  “BEHP” is not provided as a ToxFAQs on ATSDR’s Web site; 
however, it does provide a ToxFAQs for di(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate (DEHP), a slightly 
different name for the same compound, at http://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/tfacts9.html. 
 
 
 

http://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/tfacts9.html


Minutes ! FSADVA RAB Working Group ! October 17, 2002 ! Attachment 1                      Page 2 of 2 
 
  

7. Reference:  minutes, page 18.  T. Ausfeld said burial sites could be located across the 
railroad tracks.  He suggested the Corps publish a newspaper article asking the public 
whether they have knowledge of or are concerned about burial pits to inform G. Goepfert 
about potential locations of burial pits. 

 
 

8. Reference:  minutes, page 18.  G. Goepfert said that the Corps could net fish and check 
for normalcy as a biological qualitative assessment. 

 
 

9. Reference:  minutes, page 23.  C. Rielly asked how does it compare to Class A.  G. 
Moreau responded that Class A is more stringent; however, he could not address it 
without the document at hand. 

 
 

10. Reference:  minutes, page 24.  G. Goepfert said the Corps will ask Nick Ostapkovich, 
Deputy General Manager of Watervliet Reservoir, for the raw water data. 

 
 
 
 






















































































































	Min-D-RAB-10-17-02Final1.pdf
	October 17, 2002
	Other Attendees
	Meeting Called to Order
	Presentation
	Discussion of Draft Remedial Investigation Report
	Attachment 3, page 3.  Letter from Mr. Thadeus W. Ausfeld, dated November 16, 2001
	Meeting Closure



